
Northern Kentucky Area Development District  
Board of Directors Meeting | December 18, 2025  
22 Spiral Drive, Florence, Kentucky 41011 | 12 – 1pm  
   

   
 

AGENDA  

1. Call to order   Judge Gary Moore, Chair  
2. Pledge of Allegiance  All  
3. Quorum - The secretary will determine and advise chair as to the presence of quorum.  
4. Approval of the agenda – Consideration of the agenda (After approval, deletions are subject to a 

2/3 majority vote of those members present.)  Action requested.  
5. Approval of the minutes – Consideration of the minutes from the October meeting. Attachment 1. 

Action requested. 

Administrative – Items related to NKADD finance and administration will be discussed. 
6. Ethics Report – Monthly report from NKADD Ethics Officer. Joe Cottingham will report.    
7. Audit Report – Draft annual audit presented by Barnes Denig. Pending. Action requested.  
8. Financial Reports – Monthly financial reports will be presented for consideration. Tara Johnson-

Noem will report.  Attachment 2. Action requested. 
9. Payments - Request to pay invoices exceeding limit of $40,000 per Administrative Regulations. Tara 

Johnson-Noem will report. 
a. Bramel Ackley Attachment 3. Action requested. 
b. GO Bond for 22 Spiral Drive – BNY Mellon Attachment 4. Action requested. 

Programmatic – Items related to NKADD programs will be discussed.  
10. Meal Waiting List- Presentation on shortfall related to home delivered meal program.  Anne 

Wildman and Tara Johnson-Noem will present. Attachment 6. Action is requested.    
11. E-Clearinghouse - SERA: Southeast Energy Resilience Accelerator, Katie Jo Kirkpatrick will present. 

Attachment 7.  

Committee Reports – NKADD standing and ad hoc committees will present updates, if applicable.   
12. Water Management Council Update – Katie Jo Berkshire Kirkpatrick will present.  Attachment 8.  
Action is requested. 

 
Agency Overview  
12. Executive Director’s Report – Tara Johnson-Noem will present. Attachment 9.  
13. Announcements   
14. Adjournment 



ATTACHMENT 1 
 

The Northern Kentucky Area Development District (NKADD) will make every reasonable accommodation to assist 
qualified persons with disabilities accessing available services or in attending agency activities. If there is a need for 
NKADD to be aware of a specific requirement, you are encouraged to contact this agency prior to the activity so that 
suitable arrangements can be considered for the delivery of the service. 
 

NORTHERN KENTUCKY AREA DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 

22 Spiral Drive, Florence, Kentucky 
October 23, 2025 

 
I. Call to order – Chair Gary Moore called the meeting to order in the NKADD Conference Rooms 
located at 22 Spiral Drive, Florence, KY, and Teams at 12:07 p.m. 
 
II. Pledge of Allegiance – Chair Gary Moore led the Pledge. 
 
III. Quorum – Chair Gary Moore declared a quorum verified by Secretary Amy Scalf. 
 
Board members present were:
Mayor Robb Adams 
Jamie Baker 
Mark Collier* 
Joe Cottingham 
Judge Chuck Dills 
Matthew Dusing 
Judge David Fields 
Jamie Greene* 
Mayor Tommy Guidugli Jr. 
Mayor Jim Hamberg 
Katie James* 
Brittaney King 
Judge Kris Knochelmann 
Matthew Kremer* 

Mayor John Link 
Mayor Paul Meier 
Bill Mitchell 
Judge Gary Moore 
Judge Ryan Morris 
Bryan Norton* 
Judge Steven Pendery 
Pat Raverty 
Mayor Andy Schabell 
Marie Schenkel 
James Toebbe* 
Judge David Wilhoite 
Lisa Wilson-Plajer 
Judge Todd Woodyard - v 

*Indicates Alternate in attendance and voting. 
 
Those members not present or without representation:
Mayor Terri Courtney 
Mayor Charles French 
Mayor Erik Haas 
Mayor Leigh Hawkins 
Mayor Sabrina Hazen 
Mayor Jude Hehman 

Nick Hendrix 
Mayor David Henson 
Mayor Marty Lenhof 
Mayor Chris Reinersman 
George Zubaty 

 
 

Staff Present 
Clay Beyer, Chris Courtney, Correy Eimer, Tara Johnson-Noem, Katie Jo Kirkpatrick, Liberty 
Kordish, Amy Scalf, Anne Wildman 

 



ATTACHMENT 1 
 

The Northern Kentucky Area Development District (NKADD) will make every reasonable accommodation to assist 
qualified persons with disabilities accessing available services or in attending agency activities. If there is a need for 
NKADD to be aware of a specific requirement, you are encouraged to contact this agency prior to the activity so that 
suitable arrangements can be considered for the delivery of the service. 
 

 
IV. Approval of the Agenda - The Board of Directors is asked to approve the agenda (after the 

agenda is approved, deletions are subject to a 2/3 majority vote of those members present).   
Action requested. 
Mayor Paul Meier moved to approve the agenda, seconded by Mayor John Link. Motion 
carried.  

  
V.      Approval of the Minutes – The Board of Directors is asked to approve the minutes from the 

August 2025 Board Meeting. Attachment 01.   Action requested. 
Mayor Jim Hamberg moved to approve the minutes; seconded by Mark Collier. Motion 
carried.  

 
VI. Administrative – Items relating to NKADD Administration were discussed at this time.  

A. Ethics Report – No Report. No action requested.  
 

B. Employee Holiday Schedule Request – Tara Johnson-Noem presented a proposal to 
switch the 12/24 holiday to 12/26, and only a half-day on 12/24. Action requested. 
Attachment 2. 
Jamie Baker moved to approve the request; seconded by Mayor Tommy Guidugli Jr. 
Motion carried.  
 

C. Proposed Board Calendar for 2026 – Tara Johnson-Noem presented a meeting schedule. 
Attachment 3. Action requested. 
Bill Mitchell moved to approve the schedule, seconded by Judge Chuck Dills. Motion 
carried.  
 

D. Nominated NKADD Board Member from NKWIB- Correy Eimer presented a new member 
to the NKADD Board, Dean McKay, who will be a liaison to the NKWIB. Attachment 4. 
Action requested. 
Mayor Jim Hamberg moved to approve the new member, seconded by Mayor John Link. 
Motion carried.  
 

E. Financial Reports – Tara Johnson-Noem presented cumulative financial reports. See 
Attachment 05. Action requested.  
Judge Kris Knochelmann moved to approve the Financial Reports; seconded by Mark 
Collier. Motion carried.  
 

VII. Programmatic - Items relating to NKADD programs were discussed. 
A. Workforce Development Incentive Policy – Correy Eimer presented a proposed local 

policy for retaining individuals in employment and training programs. Attachment 06. 
Action requested.  
Pat Raverty moved to approve the project; seconded by Mayor Jim Hamberg.  Motion 
carried.  



ATTACHMENT 1 
 

The Northern Kentucky Area Development District (NKADD) will make every reasonable accommodation to assist 
qualified persons with disabilities accessing available services or in attending agency activities. If there is a need for 
NKADD to be aware of a specific requirement, you are encouraged to contact this agency prior to the activity so that 
suitable arrangements can be considered for the delivery of the service. 
 

 
B. E-Clearinghouse request  – Katie Jo Berkshire Kirkpatrick presented a new project at 

CVG. Attachment 7. Action requested.  
Bill Mitchell moved to approve the project; seconded by Jamie Baker. Motion carried.  
 

C. CEDS Update – Katie Jo Berkshire Kirkpatrick presented information about our 
Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy Strategic Direction and Action Plan 
to be submitted to US Economic Development Administration. Attachment 8. Action 
requested.  
Lisa Wilson-Plajer moved to approve the plan; seconded by Mayor John Link. Motion 
carried.  
 

D. Mon Ami License Renewal – Anne Wildman presented a subscription renewal for the 
Mon Ami CHFS database. Attachment 9. Action requested.   
Matt Dusing moved to accept the renewal; seconded by Judge Kris Knochelmann. 
Motion carried.  

 
E. Waiver Proposal  – Anne Wildman presented a plan to use increased reimbursement 

rates for the Medicaid Waiver program. Attachment 10. Action requested.   
Mayor Jim Hamberg moved to approve the plan; seconded by Katie James. Motion 
carried.  
 

F. Meal Shortfall – Anne Wildman and Tara Johnson-Noem presented information 
regarding a meal shortfall. Attachment 11.  No action requested.   

 
IX.  Executive Director’s Report  
 
X.  Announcements and Reminders 

 
XI.  Adjournment 

At 1:06 Judge David Wilhoite moved to adjourn; seconded by Mayor Tommy Guidugli, Jr. 
Motion carried. 

 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Judge Gary Moore, Chair  
 
 
  ____________________________________ 
  Mayor Robb Adams, 1st Vice Chair 











Home-Delivered Meals Update 
December 2025 

 
Waiting List Data Points 

 

 

 

 

53
59

0
4

12

92

6 7

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Boone Campbell Carroll Gallatin Grant Kenton Owen Pendleton

Persons on Waiting List

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

Boone Campbell Carroll Gallatin Grant Kenton Owen Pendleton

Priority Score by County

"1-10 "11-20 "21-30 "31-40 "41+



Home-Delivered Meals Update 
December 2025 

 
Meal Funding Data Points 

 

 

 

$540,894.00 $351,197.65 $397,295.00 
$72,916.20 

$109,011.38 

$-

$397,295.00 

$-
 $-

 $100,000.00

 $200,000.00

 $300,000.00

 $400,000.00

 $500,000.00

 $600,000.00

Federal State Funded ESMP NSIP

HDM Budget vs Expended July-Oct

Allocations Total Dollars Spent

$1,362,302.85 

$506,306.38 37%

Percentage of HDM Spent Through Oct, 2025

Total HDM Budget Total HDM Spent



Home-Delivered Meals Update 
December 2025 

 

Active and Attrition Data Points 

 

117 139 13 10 44 231 7 11

(4) 3.42%

(3) 2.16%

(2) 15.38% 0

0

(4) 1.73%

0 (1) 9.09%

0

50

100

150

200

250

Boone Campbell Carroll Gallatin Grant Kenton Owen Pendleton

Attrition by County through November 2025

Active by County Number by County



 

Northern Kentucky Area Development District      22 Spiral Drive Florence, KY 41042      859.283.1886      nkadd.org 

 
 
Kentucky Intergovernmental Review Process (KIRP)/ eClearinghouse 
 
Project Title: SERA: Southeast Energy Resilience Accelerator 
 
SAI No: KY202510130881 
 
RE: Board Review and Action Requested 
 
Background: The Intergovernmental Review Process started in 1982 with Presidential Executive 
Order 12372, which requires federal agencies to provide for consultation with state and local 
governments that supply non-federal funds for - or that would be directly affected by - proposed 
federal financial assistance or direct federal development. All Federal program applications in 
Kentucky are subject to Executive Order 12372 - Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs 
(unless the application specifically states not subject to EO 12372), Pres_ExOrder12372.PDF and 
KRS45.031. statute.aspx (ky.gov)  
 
The eClearinghouse or also known as the state’s Single Point of Contact (SPOC) coordinates the 
State-level review of Federal Grant projects that will take place in Kentucky and assists in 
identifying potential conflicts or duplication in services for proposed projects impacting the state 
and region. The eClearinghouse provides an efficient way for Federal Grant applicants to comply 
with funding agency requirements. It identifies the state agencies that should be involved in the 
development of federal projects and provides them with the opportunity to review and comment on 
applications as well as read other agencies’ comments. The comments are then compiled into one 
clearinghouse letter for applicants to submit to the funding agency. 
 
Contractual Obligation: The KIRP or Kentucky State Clearinghouse has been designated to provide 
state and local input to the appropriate federal agency. The Northern Kentucky Area Development 
District (NKADD) is the designated Regional Review Agency (RRA) for the Kentucky 
Intergovernmental Review Process (KIRP) through the annual Kentucky Joint Funding Administration 
(JFA) contract.  
 
Responsibilities: As the RRA, the NKADD's responsibilities include: 

• coordination of federally assisted projects and programs with local and area plans;  
• soliciting input from area-wide and local agencies that are authorized to develop and 

enforce environmental standards;  
• providing agencies charged with enforcing or furthering civil rights laws with the opportunity 

to participate in the review process and  
• to encourage an expeditious process of intergovernmental coordination and review of 

proposed projects. 

NKADD Internal Review Process: Following the JFA MOU Scope of Work, the new Community 
Development Planning team has recently revised the NKADD internal review process to ensure 
compliance and provide a streamlined comment period. The revised review process will include: 

• Providing chief elected officials with the opportunity to review, request additional 
information or ask questions about the project and its impacts on their communities. 

https://planning.maryland.gov/Documents/OurWork/CLH/Pres_ExOrder12372.pdf
https://apps.legislature.ky.gov/law/statutes/statute.aspx?id=39785


  

Northern Kentucky Area Development District      22 Spiral Drive Florence, KY 41042      859.283.1886      nkadd.org 

• If applicable, providing special purpose units of local governments with the opportunity to 
review, request additional information or ask questions about the project and its impacts on 
their communities. 

• Evaluate the responses to determine the significance of the proposed federally assisted 
programs to area-wide and local plans and programs to develop comments 

• If applicable, inform interstate metropolitan planning districts that share common territory 
with the NKADD of the project. If the interstate body desires to provide input on these 
proposals, it must utilize the officially designed state Single Point of Contact to forward 
comments to the Kentucky State Single Point of Contact. 

• Present to the NKADD Board of Directors for review and action on the project  
• Select the correct endorsement response (Endorse with Comment or Non-Endorse) and 

submit comments to eClearinghouse.  Types of comments include no concerns, 
information about permit requirements, best management practices, etc. 

 
 
 



    

 
 

SUMMARY SHEET 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVIEW PROCESS 

 

10/22/2025   KY202510130881 

DATE RECEIVED  PROJECT NUMBER 

SERA: Southeast Energy Resilience Accelerator   

PROJECT NAME  LOCAL ☐ 

Georgia Tech Research Corporation  AREAWIDE ☐ 

APPLICANT’S NAME  REGIONAL  ☐ 

EDA - Economic Development Administration  11.307  STATEWIDE ☐ 

AGENCY TO RECEIVE REQUEST  FED. CAT. #  INTERAGENCY ☐ 
 

SUMMARY: In response to an Economic Development Administration (EDA) funding opportunity, southeast 
regional resilient energy leaders are collaborating to organize and operate SERA, the Southeast 
Energy Resilience Accelerator. The Southeast Hydrogen Energy Alliance (SHEA) and E4 Carolinas 
(E4C), regional energy trade associations, will collaborate with three key Georgia Tech (GT) 
interdisciplinary research institutes; the Strategic Energy Institute (GT SEI), the Advanced Technology 
Development Center (GT ATDC), and the Manufacturing Institute (GTMI). SERA will be funded during 
its 30 month organization and demonstration with FY 2025 Economic Development Administration 
(EDA) Disaster Supplemental Implementation Path funds and collaborator in-kind cost share. SERA 
will be funded thereafter by ongoing sponsors’ support, as SERA proves its value during the 
demonstration period. 
 
SERA will serve and benefit the 544 FEMA 2023-24 disaster-designated counties in the ten Southeast 
States and the nuclear, hydrogen and similar technologies, which generate or use power via resilient 
fuel stored at the power generation site and which are conducive to micro-grid support or are 
mobile. 
 
SERA will build on recent federally-funded hydrogen and advanced nuclear technologies market 
demand studies, defining the Southeast region’s need for these technologies’ acceleration. These 
studies include; “The Economic Impact of the Nuclear Industry in the Southeast United States”, 
funded by the EDA (2021-5) and authored by E4C (2024), and “The Green Hydrogen Value Chain in 
the Southeast United States”, funded by the U.S. Department of Energy (USDOE, 2021-2) and 
authored by E4C and SHEA (2022). SERA will provide a substantial return on the EDA and USDOE 
investments in these market demand studies. 
 
SERA’s daily operation will be led by executives with decades of accelerator-based, global business 
development and public-private innovation partnership experience, having served in leadership 
roles with Plug and Play and R/GA Ventures. GTI SEI will coordinate the delivery of various GT 
services; in particular by ATDC which will physically host cohorts and provide staff to help recruit and 
coach cohort companies and provide longer term services and GTMI which will provide access to 
piloting space and manufacturing expertise through the Advanced Manufacturing Piloting Facility. 
SHEA’s regional inventory has identified 80+ hydrogen interest companies and E4C’s regional 
inventory has identified 100+ advanced nuclear interest companies in addition to 18 utilities with 



    

 
 

hydrogen or nuclear interests. A majority of these companies are located in and serve the disaster-
impacted counties. SHEA and E4C will engage these companies and utilities, many of which are in 
disaster designated counties, to define and prioritize the region’s energy resilience technology 
problem statements for accelerator cohort recruitment and identify mentors and demonstration 
hosts. 

PROPOSED FUNDING FEDERAL $4,997,089  

 APPLICANT $1,250,000 

 STATE $ 

 LOCAL  

 PROGRAM INCOME  

 OTHER (Specify)  

 PRINCIPLE FORGIVENESS  

 TOTAL $6,247,089 

   

STAFF ASSIGNED:  
 

STAFF COMMENTS: ☐ POSITIVE ☐ NEGATIVE ☐ OTHER 

 



������������	
�����
��

����������
������ �������� �!"�#�$���!"�%��&���'��(�

���������)*�+,���� -�.�

�������	�*,�����+��� /!�''�

���������,�����+��� 0!1"��'���

��������2��+��� 34567�869:8;<9�

�������+������� !=!>"��'��4?��'�!".�@A�

��������BB*+,,��� ;C6�-�D(�E�/'���'�F1�

�������������� G'D�('��

�������H���+��� �G�

�������I�
��� J5J<K:6<J8�

���������
+��� L(�M��$�'E�N�%�DD����H)O����+*�PQRST�UVW�XWYZR[�\]̂̂][_�RSU�UV]Z�\RỲaH)O����+*�	�*,�����+��� -�M�@H)O����+*���,�����+��� -�!'��H)O����+*��2��+��� 34597�66<:K<J<H)O����+*�+�������



����������	�
������
������������������������� !��"#�$�% &'����('�)�*���+���,����� !��-./���01��23$����� !��4!5�$�% 6&789�6�:,
��	,�&���
��7�	(�(��'�8''�����,����;<!�- !4�;$�% =��>?��	,�:',(���##54 @;!���-;!"$�% 8A�(��-5!4#5����-;!4�<$B4<!���-;!4�<$ 8����;C��<<4�;@5�D4<!�4 !<$�% E$ �F$ �G$H$ �I$ �J$��D���-./��$�%��D���4!5�$�%KK�LMN )(	�	,����O>&)8�=PQP�>�7��A(��		��R��@5��C�; "$�% &)8�>�&'����('�)�*���+���,8A�(�(	,��,(��2!@�!�D@!�$�% MKSMKS�M�T�<�!U���##54 @;!�R�54;V-�;!��;�@;"���R��@5R�/!W�% =��X�"�<Y��Z#5@4;$2!���!��RR��<<$�4!"$[4#���R�$B@!4!-R�$B�;C4!-R�$



��������	�
�������
�������������������������������� �!��" #�$�"%�&����������"$�&�##�������"���"!��"$���������� �������&��'()*���#��������"$������" #�$�+� �"���� ���"!���#�����!��,�����"����� ����!����"���������#�!�� (-#���������������� ��� ��"�����##���������������������������(�)*���#�+�.����"%��"$�/���"0�1�#����"��2����������./0345�6789:587�;:�<5�=>:5:?@>�A7B7C:9?75;�DE?@5@8;6<;@:5�F=ADG�HI5E@5J:99:6;I5@;KL�8:I;M7<8;�67J@:5<C�678@C@75;�7576JK�C7<E768�<67�>:CC<N:6<;@5J;:�:6J<5@O7�<5E�:976<;7�P=QDL�;M7�P:I;M7<8;�=576JK�Q78@C@75>7D>>7C76<;:6R�SM7�P:I;M7<8;�TKE6:J75�=576JK�DCC@<5>7�FPT=DG�<5E�=UV<6:C@5<8�F=UVGL�67J@:5<C�7576JK�;6<E7�<88:>@<;@:58L�W@CC�>:CC<N:6<;7�W@;M;M677�X7K�Y7:6J@<�S7>M�FYSG�@5;76E@8>@9C@5<6K�6787<6>M�@58;@;I;78Z�;M7P;6<;7J@>�=576JK�458;@;I;7�FYS�P=4GL�;M7�DEB<5>7E�S7>M5:C:JK�A7B7C:9?75;V75;76�FYS�DSAVGL�<5E�;M7�[<5IH<>;I6@5J�458;@;I;7�FYS[4GR�P=QD�W@CC�N7HI5E7E�EI6@5J�@;8�\]�?:5;M�:6J<5@O<;@:5�<5E�E7?:58;6<;@:5�W@;M�̂_�̀]̀a=>:5:?@>�A7B7C:9?75;�DE?@5@8;6<;@:5�F=ADG�A@8<8;76�PI99C7?75;<C4?9C7?75;<;@:5�b<;M�HI5E8�<5E�>:CC<N:6<;:6�@5cX@5E�>:8;�8M<67R�P=QD�W@CCN7�HI5E7E�;M767<H;76�NK�:5J:@5J�89:58:68d�8I99:6;L�<8�P=QD�96:B78�@;8B<CI7�EI6@5J�;M7�E7?:58;6<;@:5�976@:ERP=QD�W@CC�876B7�<5E�N757H@;�;M7�aUU�̂=[D�̀]̀\c̀U�E@8<8;76cE78@J5<;7E>:I5;@78�@5�;M7�;75�P:I;M7<8;�P;<;78�<5E�;M7�5I>C7<6L�MKE6:J75�<5E�8@?@C<6;7>M5:C:J@78L�WM@>M�J7576<;7�:6�I87�9:W76�B@<�678@C@75;�HI7C�8;:67E�<;�;M79:W76�J7576<;@:5�8@;7�<5E�WM@>M�<67�>:5EI>@B7�;:�?@>6:cJ6@E�8I99:6;�:6<67�?:N@C7RP=QD�W@CC�NI@CE�:5�67>75;�H7E76<CCKcHI5E7E�MKE6:J75�<5E�<EB<5>7E�5I>C7<6;7>M5:C:J@78�?<6X7;�E7?<5E�8;IE@78L�E7H@5@5J�;M7�P:I;M7<8;�67J@:5d8�577EH:6�;M787�;7>M5:C:J@78d�<>>7C76<;@:5R�SM787�8;IE@78�@5>CIE7Z�eSM7�=>:5:?@>



��������	��
���
���������
���������
����
�
���������������������	
��������
���������� !"#������
�
���������$%�����$#������&'
��(�����)����*��+��
��%
��������
����
�
���������������������	
���������
���,�,������������	�����*������-������ !�#������
�
���������$%������)�������#,���.��/�������0�������
�������������
�������
�������������-���0�������������
�������1������������
����,��.�2������������������/���������������3��
��0���/��
����������	�����������!�������*�������
���������0��������������
����!���0�������0��������������
����3����������
�0��*����0�������������
���������/��
4�
*�����4��������.5(��+���
���,�('������/����������������
������0�����	0����
��('����0����6����������
��������'�%�/
��
�/�����
���������
�����
������������0�������		����
��������
�����������
���
��������������������0�������*�����������0���������('7��/
��
�/�������0���������������������*�������������
	���
���*��3���������
��
*
��
����0������7��
	���
���*4������*�8�������,��)��2����*��������0�������
���������	����9�:�
����*��������������������������$%2����*��������0�������
���������	���� ��:��0�������
���������������������������������������� 9�
���������/��

����*�������
���������������,�����;�������	��
�����������������������������������0���
����������!�����������
�����,��)��������$%�/������*�*��
������������������
����������������	�/
��
���������������������*�������
������������	����������������<���
����*���2������*����������������
����*��������������������	�����������������
��������
�����������������	���������������������������
����,=>>?�@AB�CBAD>EFG�HIJ�KLMJNO'�����0���
����*���2��������	��������*��������������.��/����	��
������
�������
����*�����������������
����*�����/
��
�*����������/���0�������������	
��������������
����/��*�������������������/
��
���������
��0����������!*�����
�������������������,�'
������
�������		����
��*��������������������
���*�����������/
��
�������
�����/���*��������������������
�������	�����
��
��,���.��/����*������������
�����������*������!��!*��/�
!���*�



����������	�
�
����
�
�������
����������������	�����
��	�
��
��������������
�������
������������������������������
��
�
����������	���������
�
�����
��
������


���
����	��
�
��������������������������
�������������
����������������
���������	������
���	���
�����������������������������������
�
�������
�
��
�����	����
��������������
	
������
���������
�������
��
�
�����	
�����������
����������������������
�
����
���������������������	�������������������
��	�
�����
�

�� ������������������

��
��	�
�������������
�����������
����������
��������
�
���� ����������������� �
 �
 �
�
����������������
���!���	������
���������������������������
����������� ���������������	�������������	���
������
�
������	�
��	��	�������

�����
������������
��
������������������������������
�����������
�"����������������
������������"���������������
"��#$$%&%'(#)�%(*'+,#&%'(-./01�23445601�(.708$09:16;0�<.9/0<./01�=694>9.58?��!�����������@���������?���� *.:656/A8#==1099BCD28���������
�"������
��������������������������
����D5.E/�(.708F� �������
�������!������������������G0.5/H�$04/I�(.708G0.5/H�$04/I�D0176/�(>I8G0.5/H�$04/I�DH>E08G0.5/H�$04/I�#==10998).E=J655�(.708).E=J655�D0176/�(>I8&1.E94>1/�,>=08&1.E94>1/�K>74.EA8



������������	
�����
�
����	�������	������
��	�
��
���	��	���	

������
������	��������	���
������������
��	���
����
��	��������
������������������ �� !�"#"$%&' ()*++,*-.+/--�00&12%34' (5*67-*---/--�4%4"' (-/--892%&' (-/--:$9;$%<��329<"' (-/--=4>"$�?�0"21@AB' (-/--�94%&' (C*6),*-.+/--� �=D����= �D�E�����F13#A��"10G�"04H�@9$�892%&�!9I4H JKLMNL�OPQRLSKTO�NUMQL�VUL�WXQWYNL�YS�VURN�WQYZL[V*�M\]�WQR̂MQRKT�UY_�VULSX\]N�_YXK]�PL�XNL]�RS�VUL�WQYZL[V�RN�M_MQ]L]/�̀YQ�LaM̂ WKLN*�WKLMNL�NLLVUL�QL]�WQR\V�_RVUR\�VUL�]RQL[VRY\�NL[VRY\�YS�VUL�WQYZL[V/�bUM\c�TYX/F13#A��"10�"04H�@9$�892%&�!9I4H dY[X̂ L\V�XWKYM]L]*�VUM\c�TYX/F13#A��"10G�"04H�@9$�892%&�!9I4H JKLMNL�XWKYM]�M�OeRL_MPKLO�PX]fLV�SYQ�TYXQ�WQYZL[V�MN�g�_MN�X\MPKL�VYeRL_�TYXQ�MVVM[Û L\V/�bUM\c�TYX/�%I1#��9249$�9h4>"%i4�jA#$9;"3�3"$;A��&&1%32" kR\]T�l�m�PQRLS�WQYZL[V�]LN[QRWVRY\�M\]�PX]fLV�]LN[QRPR\f�XNL�YS�SX\]N�R\Jd̀�SYQ̂MV�_MN�XWKYM]L]�Y\�5-n5,n67�o�7pq-�Ŵ �rbF13#A��"10G�"04H�@9$�892%&�!9I4H JKLMNL�NX̂ M̂QRsL�VURN�WQYZL[V�R\�TYXQ�Y_\�_YQ]N/�bUL�KL\fVUT]LN[QRWVRY\�_YXK]�PL�R]LMK�SYQ�VUL�SX\]R\f�NYXQ[L�MWWKR[MVRY\/�bUL�YVULQV_Y�]Y[X̂ L\VN�MQL�\YV�OeRL_MPKL/O�JKLMNL�QLKYM]�VUYNL/�bUM\c�TYX/



���������	�
���	
���	����
�������
����������� ����������� � �!���"# $%�&$'�# (� ����%��)$�*�+�)$�'��,�$#!-�.$' / $��$���$/$#���#�(#�0$�����&� �'�"+&!$��)�1$�"$$��+(/��&$&2�3�)�1$�'$������(-�1 ��$4� /5��'�6$//5� ���)$�$1$���(#�"/$4'����� �+$����"$$���+��$#$&�6 �)�&��+4$���#$�&�" / �-27��������89��8	:�;�
�<�����=��	: > //��)$#$�"$���-�!#�+�&�& '�+#"���$��%�)��! �!��%���"/$����'�� '%-��)$�$$&'��%��) '�(#�0$��?���������	�
���	
���	����
�������
����������� @�2�A) '�(#�0$���4�-�"$����' &$#$&�B(/��� �!���&�&$1$/�(4$��B2�3��6 // �1�/1$�������'�#+�� ��2���-��$�)��/�!-�&$1$/�(4$����#�$C+ (4$���($#�� ���&+# �!��)$�(#�0$���6 //����+#�6 �) ��$'��"/ ')�$�! �$$# �!%�� / � $'��%��)$�(#�0$���D�E�((/ ����'��#��)$���4(�� $'���&�+� / � $'��//�"�#�� �!� ���)$�(#�0$��2�F7GH�IJ�K
�L��	���MM�
�����������;�;���� N3,>7FHH�IJ�O�������
�

��PQRSQTSURUV A��#$�$ 1$���#$1 $6�%#�4��)$�WX�Y$# ��!$�D�+�� /Z*���$�Y '��# ��/�#$'$#1�� ���[%% �$�\*Y�[]�-�+�4+'��%�//�6��)$� �'�#+�� ��'�/����$&����)$ #� 6$"' �$� ��)��('̂ZZ)$# ��!$2_-2!�1Z��4(/ ���$Z��!$'Z�1$#1 $62�'(̀2�A)$#$�-�+�6 //% �&��)$�#$C+ #$&�&��+4$��'�%�#��)$�*$�� ���abc�.$1 $6���&D�4(/ ���$�%�#�dc�D�.���#��ebb2�A) '�*$�� ���abc�'+"4 '' ���(#��$''���*Y�[�6 //��'' '���((/ ����'���&��!$�� $'� ��(#�1 & �!��)$��((#�(# ��$/$1$/��%� �%�#4�� ������#$�$ 1$���44$��'�%#�4�*Y�[2�3%�-�+�)�1$���-C+$'� ��'�(/$�'$���������X1���$�*)$## �_5�1 ��$4� /���-1���$2')$## �_f_-2!�12��/$�'$����$̂�3%�-�+#�(#�0$��� '�%+�&$&��)#�+!)A#��'(�#��� ����/�$#��� 1$�\A��]5�A#��'(�#��� ���,�)���$4$��'�\A,]5D��!$'� ��5�g � !�� ��5�� #�h+�/ �-�\Dg�h]5��#�*�%$�.�+�$'����*�)��/\*.A*]�-�+�6 //��$$&����'$�&��) '� �%�#4�� ������g �)�$/�i��$'5�Y '��# ��#$'$#1�� ����#�!#�4��&4 � '�#���#�6 �)��)$�W$��+�_-�A#��'(�#��� ��D�" �$��1 ��$4� /����g �)�$/.2i��$'jf_-2!�1��#�)�#&���(-����g �)�$/i��$'5�[%% �$��%�k���/��#�!#�4'5�WX�A#��'(�#��� ���D�" �$�5�jbb�g$#�*�#$$���#��_%�#�5�WX�lbcjj2��������'$�&�4��$# �/'�& #$��/-����*Y�[� %-�+#�(#�0$��� �1�/1$'�%+�& �!�%#�4��)$'$�%�+#�'�+#�$'��'� ��6 //���+'$&$/�-'� ���)$�#$1 $6�(#��$''2�g �)�$/�i��$'�6 //����'+/��& #$��/-�6 �)��)$

�



���������	�
��
����
��
����������������	����
��������
��
������
�������	���������� !"�" #�$%&'����()&'��!*%��+)',"(!+��( -%#'�



 

Northern Kentucky Area Development District      22 Spiral Drive Florence, KY 41042      859.283.1886      nkadd.org 

 
 
Kentucky Intergovernmental Review Process (KIRP)/ eClearinghouse 
 
Project Title: Solenoid Valve Stations Project 
 
SAI No: KY202510310973 
 
RE: Board Review and Action Requested 
 
Background: The Intergovernmental Review Process started in 1982 with Presidential Executive 
Order 12372, which requires federal agencies to provide for consultation with state and local 
governments that supply non-federal funds for - or that would be directly affected by - proposed 
federal financial assistance or direct federal development. All Federal program applications in 
Kentucky are subject to Executive Order 12372 - Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs 
(unless the application specifically states not subject to EO 12372), Pres_ExOrder12372.PDF and 
KRS45.031. statute.aspx (ky.gov)  
 
The eClearinghouse or also known as the state’s Single Point of Contact (SPOC) coordinates the 
State-level review of Federal Grant projects that will take place in Kentucky and assists in 
identifying potential conflicts or duplication in services for proposed projects impacting the state 
and region. The eClearinghouse provides an efficient way for Federal Grant applicants to comply 
with funding agency requirements. It identifies the state agencies that should be involved in the 
development of federal projects and provides them with the opportunity to review and comment on 
applications as well as read other agencies’ comments. The comments are then compiled into one 
clearinghouse letter for applicants to submit to the funding agency. 
 
Contractual Obligation: The KIRP or Kentucky State Clearinghouse has been designated to provide 
state and local input to the appropriate federal agency. The Northern Kentucky Area Development 
District (NKADD) is the designated Regional Review Agency (RRA) for the Kentucky 
Intergovernmental Review Process (KIRP) through the annual Kentucky Joint Funding Administration 
(JFA) contract.  
 
Responsibilities: As the RRA, the NKADD's responsibilities include: 

• coordination of federally assisted projects and programs with local and area plans;  
• soliciting input from area-wide and local agencies that are authorized to develop and 

enforce environmental standards;  
• providing agencies charged with enforcing or furthering civil rights laws with the opportunity 

to participate in the review process and  
• to encourage an expeditious process of intergovernmental coordination and review of 

proposed projects. 

NKADD Internal Review Process: Following the JFA MOU Scope of Work, the new Community 
Development Planning team has recently revised the NKADD internal review process to ensure 
compliance and provide a streamlined comment period. The revised review process will include: 

• Providing chief elected officials with the opportunity to review, request additional 
information or ask questions about the project and its impacts on their communities. 

https://planning.maryland.gov/Documents/OurWork/CLH/Pres_ExOrder12372.pdf
https://apps.legislature.ky.gov/law/statutes/statute.aspx?id=39785


  

Northern Kentucky Area Development District      22 Spiral Drive Florence, KY 41042      859.283.1886      nkadd.org 

• If applicable, providing special purpose units of local governments with the opportunity to 
review, request additional information or ask questions about the project and its impacts on 
their communities. 

• Evaluate the responses to determine the significance of the proposed federally assisted 
programs to area-wide and local plans and programs to develop comments 

• If applicable, inform interstate metropolitan planning districts that share common territory 
with the NKADD of the project. If the interstate body desires to provide input on these 
proposals, it must utilize the officially designed state Single Point of Contact to forward 
comments to the Kentucky State Single Point of Contact. 

• Present to the NKADD Board of Directors for review and action on the project  
• Select the correct endorsement response (Endorse with Comment or Non-Endorse) and 

submit comments to eClearinghouse.  Types of comments include no concerns, 
information about permit requirements, best management practices, etc. 

 
 
 



    

 
 

SUMMARY SHEET 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVIEW PROCESS 

 

11/21/2025   KY202510310973 

DATE RECEIVED  PROJECT NUMBER 

Solenoid Valve Stations Project   

PROJECT NAME  LOCAL ☐ 

City of Dry Ridge  AREAWIDE ☐ 

APPLICANT’S NAME  REGIONAL  ☐ 

Other (Specify) : Cleaner Water Program  21.027  STATEWIDE ☐ 

AGENCY TO RECEIVE REQUEST  FED. CAT. #  INTERAGENCY ☐ 
 

SUMMARY: This project consists of constructing three (3) solenoid valve stations and telemetry to improve 
control of the existing water storage tanks. All remaining funds will be used to purchase automatic 
radio read meters. 

PROPOSED FUNDING FEDERAL $  

 APPLICANT $ 

 STATE $414,437 

 LOCAL  

 PROGRAM INCOME  

 OTHER (Specify)  

 PRINCIPLE FORGIVENESS  

 TOTAL $414,437 

   

STAFF ASSIGNED:  
 

STAFF COMMENTS: ☐ POSITIVE ☐ NEGATIVE ☐ OTHER 

 

























 

Northern Kentucky Area Development District      22 Spiral Drive Florence, KY 41042      859.283.1886      nkadd.org 

 
 
Kentucky Intergovernmental Review Process (KIRP)/ eClearinghouse 
 
Project Title: West Latonia Water Main and Full Lead Service Line Replacement 
 
SAI No: KY202511120985 
 
RE: Board Review and Action Requested 
 
Background: The Intergovernmental Review Process started in 1982 with Presidential Executive 
Order 12372, which requires federal agencies to provide for consultation with state and local 
governments that supply non-federal funds for - or that would be directly affected by - proposed 
federal financial assistance or direct federal development. All Federal program applications in 
Kentucky are subject to Executive Order 12372 - Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs 
(unless the application specifically states not subject to EO 12372), Pres_ExOrder12372.PDF and 
KRS45.031. statute.aspx (ky.gov)  
 
The eClearinghouse or also known as the state’s Single Point of Contact (SPOC) coordinates the 
State-level review of Federal Grant projects that will take place in Kentucky and assists in 
identifying potential conflicts or duplication in services for proposed projects impacting the state 
and region. The eClearinghouse provides an efficient way for Federal Grant applicants to comply 
with funding agency requirements. It identifies the state agencies that should be involved in the 
development of federal projects and provides them with the opportunity to review and comment on 
applications as well as read other agencies’ comments. The comments are then compiled into one 
clearinghouse letter for applicants to submit to the funding agency. 
 
Contractual Obligation: The KIRP or Kentucky State Clearinghouse has been designated to provide 
state and local input to the appropriate federal agency. The Northern Kentucky Area Development 
District (NKADD) is the designated Regional Review Agency (RRA) for the Kentucky 
Intergovernmental Review Process (KIRP) through the annual Kentucky Joint Funding Administration 
(JFA) contract.  
 
Responsibilities: As the RRA, the NKADD's responsibilities include: 

• coordination of federally assisted projects and programs with local and area plans;  
• soliciting input from area-wide and local agencies that are authorized to develop and 

enforce environmental standards;  
• providing agencies charged with enforcing or furthering civil rights laws with the opportunity 

to participate in the review process and  
• to encourage an expeditious process of intergovernmental coordination and review of 

proposed projects. 

NKADD Internal Review Process: Following the JFA MOU Scope of Work, the new Community 
Development Planning team has recently revised the NKADD internal review process to ensure 
compliance and provide a streamlined comment period. The revised review process will include: 

• Providing chief elected officials with the opportunity to review, request additional 
information or ask questions about the project and its impacts on their communities. 

https://planning.maryland.gov/Documents/OurWork/CLH/Pres_ExOrder12372.pdf
https://apps.legislature.ky.gov/law/statutes/statute.aspx?id=39785


  

Northern Kentucky Area Development District      22 Spiral Drive Florence, KY 41042      859.283.1886      nkadd.org 

• If applicable, providing special purpose units of local governments with the opportunity to 
review, request additional information or ask questions about the project and its impacts on 
their communities. 

• Evaluate the responses to determine the significance of the proposed federally assisted 
programs to area-wide and local plans and programs to develop comments 

• If applicable, inform interstate metropolitan planning districts that share common territory 
with the NKADD of the project. If the interstate body desires to provide input on these 
proposals, it must utilize the officially designed state Single Point of Contact to forward 
comments to the Kentucky State Single Point of Contact. 

• Present to the NKADD Board of Directors for review and action on the project  
• Select the correct endorsement response (Endorse with Comment or Non-Endorse) and 

submit comments to eClearinghouse.  Types of comments include no concerns, 
information about permit requirements, best management practices, etc. 

 
 
 



    

 
 

SUMMARY SHEET 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVIEW PROCESS 

 

11/26/2025   KY202511120985 

DATE RECEIVED  PROJECT NUMBER 

West Latonia Water Main and Full Lead Service Line Replacement   

PROJECT NAME  LOCAL ☐ 

Northern Kentucky Water District  AREAWIDE ☐ 

APPLICANT’S NAME  REGIONAL  ☐ 

State Funds  66.443  STATEWIDE ☐ 

AGENCY TO RECEIVE REQUEST  FED. CAT. #  INTERAGENCY ☐ 
 

SUMMARY: This project is located within the City of Covington and involves water main replacement of older 
unlined cast iron water mains with lead joints that have a high rate of failure. This project will 
replace 5,800 feet of water main. Using the EJScreen Tool for identifying disadvantaged 
communities, these streets serve areas that have a density of 80th percentile or higher for low 
income or have a density of 80th percentile or higher for over age 64 as compared to the national 
MHI. It is expected the project will have lead service lines on both the utility side and the customer 
side for a majority of the households. The project will also eliminate a blowoff with continuously 
running water that is used to mitigate discolored water complaints from the unlined cast iron water 
mains. Eliminating this blowoff would result in an estimated annual savings of $500 in non-revenue 
water (based on variable production cost not retail) plus another $5,700 in sanitation charges. 
$5,700 in sanitation charges. The project will impact a total of approximately 238 households. It is 
expected 200 service lines will be made of lead. The total project cost is $4,700,000 including 
engineering design and contingencies plus construction of improvements. A breakdown of the 
estimated project costs are as follows: • Water main replacement, engineering & contingency - 
$2,700,000 • Lead service line replacement - $2,000,000 The costs to replace lead service lines as 
part of a water main replacement project have been reported to be 40% lower than stand-alone 
replacement. The estimated cost for full lead service line replacement (utility and customer side) is 
$10,000 per service when conducted with water main replacement. Trenchless installation methods 
will be used for service line replacement. Open cutting a trench for a service line replacement will 
only be allowed if trenchless methods are unsuccessful. The District is requesting $2,000,000 from 
either the Lead Service Line Replacement Program or the Base Supplemental Program 

PROPOSED FUNDING FEDERAL $  

 APPLICANT $ 

 STATE $3,000,000 

 LOCAL $1,700,000 

 PROGRAM INCOME  

 OTHER (Specify)  

 PRINCIPLE FORGIVENESS  



    

 
 

 TOTAL $4,700,000 

   

STAFF ASSIGNED:  
 

STAFF COMMENTS: ☐ POSITIVE ☐ NEGATIVE ☐ OTHER 

 































 

Northern Kentucky Area Development District      22 Spiral Drive Florence, KY 41042      859.283.1886      nkadd.org 

 
 
Kentucky Intergovernmental Review Process (KIRP)/ eClearinghouse 
 
Project Title: Industrial Customer Expansion - Treatment Plant Expansion & Enhancement (ICE-
TEE) 
 
SAI No: KY202511201015 
 
RE: Board Review and Action Requested 
 
Background: The Intergovernmental Review Process started in 1982 with Presidential Executive 
Order 12372, which requires federal agencies to provide for consultation with state and local 
governments that supply non-federal funds for - or that would be directly affected by - proposed 
federal financial assistance or direct federal development. All Federal program applications in 
Kentucky are subject to Executive Order 12372 - Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs 
(unless the application specifically states not subject to EO 12372), Pres_ExOrder12372.PDF and 
KRS45.031. statute.aspx (ky.gov)  
 
The eClearinghouse or also known as the state’s Single Point of Contact (SPOC) coordinates the 
State-level review of Federal Grant projects that will take place in Kentucky and assists in 
identifying potential conflicts or duplication in services for proposed projects impacting the state 
and region. The eClearinghouse provides an efficient way for Federal Grant applicants to comply 
with funding agency requirements. It identifies the state agencies that should be involved in the 
development of federal projects and provides them with the opportunity to review and comment on 
applications as well as read other agencies’ comments. The comments are then compiled into one 
clearinghouse letter for applicants to submit to the funding agency. 
 
Contractual Obligation: The KIRP or Kentucky State Clearinghouse has been designated to provide 
state and local input to the appropriate federal agency. The Northern Kentucky Area Development 
District (NKADD) is the designated Regional Review Agency (RRA) for the Kentucky 
Intergovernmental Review Process (KIRP) through the annual Kentucky Joint Funding Administration 
(JFA) contract.  
 
Responsibilities: As the RRA, the NKADD's responsibilities include: 

• coordination of federally assisted projects and programs with local and area plans;  
• soliciting input from area-wide and local agencies that are authorized to develop and 

enforce environmental standards;  
• providing agencies charged with enforcing or furthering civil rights laws with the opportunity 

to participate in the review process and  
• to encourage an expeditious process of intergovernmental coordination and review of 

proposed projects. 

NKADD Internal Review Process: Following the JFA MOU Scope of Work, the new Community 
Development Planning team has recently revised the NKADD internal review process to ensure 
compliance and provide a streamlined comment period. The revised review process will include: 

https://planning.maryland.gov/Documents/OurWork/CLH/Pres_ExOrder12372.pdf
https://apps.legislature.ky.gov/law/statutes/statute.aspx?id=39785


  

Northern Kentucky Area Development District      22 Spiral Drive Florence, KY 41042      859.283.1886      nkadd.org 

• Providing chief elected officials with the opportunity to review, request additional 
information or ask questions about the project and its impacts on their communities. 

• If applicable, providing special purpose units of local governments with the opportunity to 
review, request additional information or ask questions about the project and its impacts on 
their communities. 

• Evaluate the responses to determine the significance of the proposed federally assisted 
programs to area-wide and local plans and programs to develop comments 

• If applicable, inform interstate metropolitan planning districts that share common territory 
with the NKADD of the project. If the interstate body desires to provide input on these 
proposals, it must utilize the officially designed state Single Point of Contact to forward 
comments to the Kentucky State Single Point of Contact. 

• Present to the NKADD Board of Directors for review and action on the project  
• Select the correct endorsement response (Endorse with Comment or Non-Endorse) and 

submit comments to eClearinghouse.  Types of comments include no concerns, 
information about permit requirements, best management practices, etc. 

 
 
 



    

 
 

SUMMARY SHEET 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVIEW PROCESS 

 

11/26/2025   KY202511201015 

DATE RECEIVED  PROJECT NUMBER 

Industrial Customer Expansion - Treatment Plant Expansion & 
Enhancement (ICE-TEE) 

  

PROJECT NAME  LOCAL ☐ 

Carrollton Utilities  AREAWIDE ☐ 

APPLICANT’S NAME  REGIONAL  ☐ 

State Funds    STATEWIDE ☐ 

AGENCY TO RECEIVE REQUEST  FED. CAT. #  INTERAGENCY ☐ 
 

SUMMARY: The Carrollton Utilities (CU) Regional Wastewater Treatment Plant's current average daily flow is 
around 1 MGD. To protect the public and environment and to provide service to current and future 
customers, CU is evaluating the WWTP to determine what improvements would need to be made to 
increase the capacity of the facility. The first option considered was to optimize the current 
treatment capacity by studying the treatment process and the characteristics of the waste stream 
being treated. Therefore, CU will be updating its current Facilities Plan. One of the goals will be to 
optimize the effectiveness of the process and efficiencies that can be gained by rehabbing, 
replacing, or renewing of the existing equipment. The project will explore replacing the headworks 
grinders with a screening system, rehabbing the lagoon liners, replacing the bio-tower media and 
the distribution arms, renewing the clarifiers and non-potable water system, and adding a UV bank, 
along with other miscellaneous improvements as identified in the updated Facilities Plan. Increasing 
the flow capacity by 1 MGD is the lofty goal of the project, but the ancillary benefit is a newly 
updated and more efficient nearly 20-year-old plant. Also included is increasing the flow capacity 
along the U.S. 42 Corridor in Carroll County. The existing industries along this corridor have been 
increasing the flow they are discharging into our system, and additional new users have been added 
since the existing 6" forcemain was constructed and it has now reached capacity. CU will add nearly 
15,000 LF of 10" forcemain. The majority of the new forcemain will be in the road right-of-way; 
however, there will be approximately 5,000 LF in a new easement. The SCADA communication will 
be upgraded at the pump stations along the route. The Facility Plan/SPEAR-FONSI is located on the 
Division of Water's public notice webpage https://dep.gateway.ky.gov/eSearch/ 

PROPOSED FUNDING FEDERAL $1  

 APPLICANT $ 

 STATE $ 

 LOCAL  

 PROGRAM INCOME  

 OTHER (Specify)  

 PRINCIPLE FORGIVENESS  



    

 
 

 TOTAL $1 

   

STAFF ASSIGNED:  
 

STAFF COMMENTS: ☐ POSITIVE ☐ NEGATIVE ☐ OTHER 

 















WRIS Updates
SRF Rankings
County Visits

Site Visits
Mapping Updates

Regional Water Management Plan

Who Does What?
NKADD

KY DOW

KIA

Ensures all State
Regulations are followed

Plans and Specs
Environmentals

Finance
Compliance

Tracking Project Mapping

Municipal Systems

Regulated by PSC
Rates Approved by PSC

Boundaries Regulated by
PSC

Water Districts
Regulated by City

Rates Approved by City
Boundaries Regulated by PSC
if Expanding Outside the City

Limits

Oversees Water Districts
Regulates Rates

Handles Complaints
Approves Infrastructure

Investments

PSC







TimelineTimeline

C
a

ll
 f

o
r

 S
R

F
 P

r
o

je
c

t
s

December WMC
Meeting

01 June WMC
Meeting

Approve Local Ranking
Criteria

02
Late October-
Early
November

County Meetings

Finalize all SRF Projects for Call
for Projects (Use SRF Checklist)

03 Approve SRF Project Rankings
for Submittal

04 Late January-
Early February

Make Edits Based on DOW
Comments (About a Week for
this Process)

SRFSRF

July-
December

Invitations to Apply for SRF
Funding will be Released. 

Full Application due in December
if invited to apply.

05

F
u

ll
 A

p
p

li
c

a
t

io
n



NKADD Water Projects by Total Points, Categories 1-5

R
e

g
io

n
a

l

C
o

u
n

ty
 

R
a

n
k

T
o

ta
l 

P
o

in
ts

Pendleton Pendleton WX21191022

East Pendelton County 

Water District Pendleton County Water Treatment Plant 1 1 40

Boone Boone WX21015035 City of Walton South Water Main Connection to NKWD 2 1 31

Grant Grant WX21081026 City of Williamstown

Water Treatment Plant and Raw Water 

Intake Project 3 1 30

Gallatin Gallatin WX21077013 City of Warsaw Warsaw Tank Repainting 4 1 28

Campbell/Kenton Campbell WX21117022

Northern Kentucky 

Water District

Covington & Dayton Water Main and Full 

Lead Service Line Replace 5 1 28

Campbell/Kenton Kenton WX21117020

Northern Kentucky 

Water District

NKWD F26 Lead Service Line 

Replacement Project 6 1 28

Owen Owen WX21187002

Owen County Fiscal 

Court Owen County Unserved Areas 7 1 24

Pendleton Pendleton WX21191025 City of Falmouth Water Storage Tanks and Treatment Plant 8 2 27

Boone Boone WX21015036

Boone County Fiscal 

Court Rural Water Phase 3.4 9 2 21

Grant Grant WX21081022

Bullock Pen Water 

District

Bullock Pen Water Treatment Plant 

Replacement-Design and Const. 10 2 27

Gallatin Gallatin WX21077014 City of Warsaw Warsaw Water Treatment Plant 11 2 27

Campbell/Kenton Kenton WX21117023

Northern Kentucky 

Water District

Covington Eastside Water Main and Full 

Lead Service Line Replace 12 2 22

Owen Owen WX21187006

Owen County Fiscal 

Court KY 1316 Water Main Extension 13 2 18

Pendleton Pendleton WX21191027

East Pendelton County 

Water District

Cast Iron Line Replacement to Kincaid 

Lake 14 3 24

Grant Grant WX21081204 City of Dry Ridge

CIty of Dry Ridge-2008 Water System 

Improvements 15 3 23

Gallatin Gallatin WX21077012

Gallatin County Water 

Distict

Gallatin County Regional Airport Water 

Main Extension 16 3 26

Campbell/Kenton Kenton WX21117021

Northern Kentucky 

Water District

Latonia Phase 2 Water Main and Full Lead 

Service Line Replacement 17 3 19

Ranking

Planning Unit
County

Name
PNUM Applicant Project Title



NKADD Water Projects by Total Points, Categories 1-5

Pendleton Pendleton WX21037007

Pendleton County 

Water District Campbell County Waterline Extension 18 4 19

Gallatin Gallatin WX21077011

Gallatin County Water 

Distict US-42 Water Main Extension 19 4 18

Pendleton Pendleton WX21191026 City of Falmouth Galvanized Main Replacement 20 5 16



NKADD Wastewater Projects by Total Points, Categories 1-5

R
e

g
io

n
a

l

C
o

u
n

ty
 R

a
n

k

T
o

ta
l 
P

o
in

ts

Campbell/Kenton Kenton SX21117022 Sanitation District #1 Licking River Tunnel Solution 1 1 37

Campbell/Kenton Campbell SX21037012 Sanitation District #1 Taylor Creek EQ 2 1 34

Pendleton Pendleton SX21191017 City of Falmouth Inflow and Infiltration Project 3 1 32

Boone Boone SX21015018 City of Walton WWTP No. 1 Expansion - Plant D 4 1 30

Grant Grant SX21081003

Grant County Sanitary 

Sewer System Wastewater Treatment Plant Upgrade 5 1 29

Gallatin Gallatin SX21077009 Carrollton Utilities

Gallatin County Industrial Park & Airport 

Sanitary Sewer 6 1 25

Campbell/Kenton Kenton SX21117008 Sanitation District #1 Southwest Kenton County-Phase I 7 2 23

Campbell/Kenton Campbell SX21117015 Sanitation District #1 Church St. EQ and Surrounding Piping 8 2 32

Pendleton Pendleton SX21191018 City of Butler

Butler, KY - Wastewater Collection and 

Treatment Improvements 9 2 27

Boone Boone SX21015011 City of Walton

Mullen Sewage Lift Station Upgrade & 

Force Main Extension Project 10 2 29

Grant Grant SX21081008 City of Williamstown Williamstown Lift Station Replacement 11 2 21

Campbell/Kenton Kenton SX21117009 Sanitation District #1 Southwest Kenton County-Phase II 12 3 21

Campbell/Kenton Campbell SX21037011 Sanitation District #1 Newport Festival Park Solution 13 3 29

Campbell/Kenton Kenton SX21117010 Sanitation District #1 Southwest Kenton County-Phase III 14 4 20

Campbell/Kenton Campbell SX21037013 Sanitation District #1 Echo Hills Sanitary Sewer Improvements 15 4 26

Campbell/Kenton Campbell SX21117020 Sanitation District #1 KY17 Corridor Tunnel (North of Lakeview) 16 5 26

Planning Unit

Ranking

Project TitleApplicantPNUM
County

Name



  1 

SRF FY2027 Call for Project Lists 

Water Call for SRF Project List (Safe Drinking Water Act) 

County 
Project 
Number 
(WRIS) 

Project Name Entity Description 
Estimated 

Cost 
Requested 

Cost Households House Senate 

Boone WX21015035 South Water 
Main 
Connection to 
NKWD 

City of 
Walton 

- Project connects the City of Walton's water system 
to the Northern Kentucky Water District (NKWD). 
- Key activities: 
  - Install 850 LF of 12-inch water main 
  - Install a new master meter 
  - Construct a 250 GPM water booster pump station 

$1,008,000 $1,008,000 2,074 61 
78 

20 
 

Pendleton WX21191025 Water Storage 
Tanks and 
Treatment Plant 

City of 
Falmouth 

- The 2023 storage tank inspection revealed the 
clear well tank at the water plant requires repairs 
and painting. 
- The city plans to upgrade the electrical system at 
the water treatment plant, as the current grid is over 
40 years old. 
- Repairs or replacement of the lamella settling 
basin, in service since 1986 and needing attention 
within 5 years, are also proposed. 
- Funds will be allocated to replace or repair the raw 
water check valve to prevent backflow, ensuring 
pump protection and potable water safety. 

$1,236,000 $1,236,000 1,198 78 24 

Pendleton WX21037007 Campbell 
County 
Waterline 
Extension 

Pendleton 
County 
Water 
District 

- Construction of 6.4 miles of 6 inch and 4 inch 
water line to serve 75 new customers in Campbell 
County. 

$1,405,000 $1,405,000 75 78 24 

Pendleton WX21191027 Cast Iron Line 
Replacement to 
Kincaid Lake 

East 
Pendleton 
Water 
District 

- Replace 6" cast iron line from Falmouth to Kincaid 
Lake with: 
  - 8" PVC DR18 C900 and 8" SDR17 PVC as 
needed 
 
- Upgrade Pump Stations #1 and #2 on Hwy 159, 
including: 

$3,299,000 
 

$3,299,000 158 78 24 



  2 

Water Call for SRF Project List (Safe Drinking Water Act) 

County 
Project 
Number 
(WRIS) 

Project Name Entity Description 
Estimated 

Cost 
Requested 

Cost Households House Senate 

  - Complete replacement of buildings, pumps, 
motors, and SCADA system 
  - Add generator with auto transfer switch at each 
location 

Pendleton WX21191026 Galvanized 
Main 
Replacement 

City of 
Falmouth 

The proposed project would include the 
replacement of approx. 4,834.55' of water main. 
These mains serve the city limits of Falmouth. They 
are made of 2' galvanized pipe and were installed in 
the 1940's. 

  1,198 78 24 

Kenton WX21117020 NKWD F26 
Lead Service 
Line 
Replacement 
Project 

Northern 
Kentucky 
Water 
District 

- Project Overview: Lead service line replacement in 
low-income communities. 
- Lead Service Lines:  
  - 1,761 full lead service lines (both utility and 
private). 
  - 3,627 partial lead service lines (either utility or 
private). 
- Funding Request: Requesting $54 million from the 
2026 DWSRF, with 70% as principal forgiveness. 

$54,000,000 $54,000,000 5,388 63 
64 
65 
67 

23 
24 

Kenton WX21117021 Latonia Phase 2 
Water Main and 
Full Lead 
Service Line 
Replacement 

Northern 
Kentucky 
Water 
District 

- Project focuses on water main and lead service 
line replacement in disadvantaged Covington 
communities. 
- Target areas have a median household income 
below $60,183 and rank at the 80th percentile or 
higher on at least one socioeconomic indicator. 
- Approximately 11,780 feet of unlined cast iron 
water mains will be replaced, impacting 373 
households. 
- Estimated 300 lead service lines will also be 
replaced. 

$8,500,000 $7,500,000 373 64 
65 

23 

Campbell WX21117022 Covington & 
Dayton Water 
Main and Full 

Northern 
Kentucky 

-  Water main and lead service line replacement in 
disadvantaged communities in Covington   

$9,600,000 $8,185,000 418 65 
67 

23 
24 



  3 

Water Call for SRF Project List (Safe Drinking Water Act) 

County 
Project 
Number 
(WRIS) 

Project Name Entity Description 
Estimated 

Cost 
Requested 

Cost Households House Senate 

Lead Service 
Line Replace 

Water 
District 

- Target Communities: Median household income 
below $60,183; 80th percentile or higher on at least 
1 socioeconomic indicator (per EPA)   
- Scope of Work:   
  - Replace 13,860 feet of unlined cast iron water 
mains   
  - Affect 437 households   
  - Replace approximately 312 lead service lines   

Kenton WX21117023 Covington 
Eastside Water 
Main and Full 
Lead Service 
Line Replace 

Northern 
Kentucky 
Water 
District 

- Project aims to replace water mains and lead 
service lines in disadvantaged communities in 
Covington. 
- Target areas have a median household income 
below $60,183 and rank at least 80th percentile in 
one socioeconomic indicator per the EPA. 
- About 8,455 feet of unlined cast iron water mains 
will be replaced, affecting 417 households. 
- Estimated 314 lead service lines will also be 
replaced. 

$7,100,000 $6,140,000 417 64 
65 

23 
24 

Gallatin WX21077012 Gallatin County 
Regional Airport 
Water Main 
Extension 

Gallatin 
County 
Water 
District 

- New regional airport in Gallatin County   
- Extension of an 8" water main by approximately 
6,500 LF   
- Purpose: Provide water service to the airport and 
nearby areas   
- Elimination of dead ends in the distribution system   
- Improvement of water quality for:   
  - 36 households   
  - 2 businesses   
  - 1 emergency connection   
- Enhanced reliability during emergencies   

$882,800 
 

$882,800 
 

 

52 61 20 

Grant WX21081022 Bullock Pen 
Water 
Treatment Plant 

Bullock Pen 
Water 
District 

- Project Overview: $16,297,000 $15,992,536 15 61 17 
20 



  4 

Water Call for SRF Project List (Safe Drinking Water Act) 

County 
Project 
Number 
(WRIS) 

Project Name Entity Description 
Estimated 

Cost 
Requested 

Cost Households House Senate 

Replacement-
Design and 
Const. 

  - Engineering design including architectural, 
geotechnical, surveying, environmental, and 
archaeological assessments. 
  - Development of a 2.0 MGD Water Treatment 
Plant (WTP) to replace the outdated 1.1 MGD plant 
from 1961. 
- New Facilities: 
  - Replacement of water intake and pumps with 
energy-efficient Variable Frequency Drives (VFDs). 
  - Proposed WTP location near existing 
infrastructure. 
- Distribution System Improvements: 
  - Waterline extensions to unserved areas and 
replacement of a damaged asbestos cement line. 
  - New water storage tank and mixing systems for 
existing tanks. 
- Additional Components: 
  - Installation of Master Meter (AMR), SCADA, 
security measures, and two generators. 
  - Removal of one WTP pump. 
- Contaminant Management: 
  - Inclusion of Granular Activated Carbon (GAC) for 
PFAS removal and addressing emerging 
contaminants. 

Gallatin WX21077011 US-42 Water 
Main Extension 

Gallatin 
County 
Water 
District 

- Project involves the extension of approximately 
3,150 linear feet (LF) of water main.   
- Purpose: to provide potable water service to six 
households.   
- Current situation: Households are dependent on 
wells and/or hauling water to meet their needs.   

$302,275 $302,275 6 61 20 

Gallatin WX21077013 Warsaw Tank 
Repainting 

City of 
Warsaw 

- The project addresses deficiencies found in recent 
tank inspections. 

$835,000 $835,000 901 61 20 



  5 

Water Call for SRF Project List (Safe Drinking Water Act) 

County 
Project 
Number 
(WRIS) 

Project Name Entity Description 
Estimated 

Cost 
Requested 

Cost Households House Senate 

- The City of Warsaw has three storage facilities: 
Firehouse, High School, and WTP. 
- Each tank will be taken offline one at a time for 
repairs and coating updates. 

Owen WX21187002 Owen County 
Unserved Areas 

Owen 
County 
Fiscal Court 

The project aims to extend new water mains to 
unserved areas, including: 
 
- 35,600 linear feet of 4-inch water mains 
- 22,900 linear feet of 6-inch water mains 
- Serving approximately 55 unserved users 
- Adding hydraulic loops for redundancy in the 
existing potable water system 
- Extensions on Cull Road and Red Oak Road 

$1,655,448 $1,655,448 
 

44 47 20 

Owen  WX21187006 KY1316 Water 
Main Extension 

Owen 
County 
Fiscal Court 

- Extend about 21,700 3" waterline down KY 1316 
to pick up unserved households 
- Replacing about 3,000 linear feet of waterline to 3" 
waterline from the existing 2" waterline. 

$1,150,923 $1,150,923 
 

18 47 20 

Pendleton WX21191022 Pendleton 
County 
Regional Water 
Treatment Plant 

East 
Pendleton 
County 
Water 
District 

 - New 2.0 MGD water treatment plant with intake 
and pumping upgrades 
 - Plant will treat emerging contaminants like PFAS 
using GAC 

$21,602,000 $1,156,000 4,861 78 24 

    Total $128,873,446 $104,747,982    

 

 

  



  6 

Wastewater Call for SRF Project List (Clean Water Act) 

County 
Project 
Number 
(WRIS) 

Project Name Entity Description 
Estimated 

Cost 
Requested 

Cost Households House Senate 

Boone SX21015011 Aosta Valley 
Bypass 

City of 
Walton 

- Upgrade of Mullen Drive Lift Station, rated at 
222 GPM and 65 feet of head. 
- Extend 6-inch sewer force main approximately 
6,500 LF to an existing manhole and a new 
sewage lift station replacing a package 
treatment plant. 
- Install variable frequency drives (VFDs) at 
Walton Towne-Center Lift Station. 

$1,147,000 $1,147,000 1,882 78 20 

Boone SX21015018 WWTP No. 1 
Expansion - 
Plant D 

City of 
Walton 

- Expansion of the existing Wastewater 
Treatment Plant No. 1 
- New 0.450 MGD Extended Aeration System 
- New 313 GPM raw sewage lift station 
- New waste activated sludge lift station 
- Increase design capacity to 1.3 MGD 

$7,768,000 $7,768,000 2,058 78 20 

Pendleton SX21191017 Inflow and 
Infiltration 
Project 

City of 
Falmouth 

- The City entered into an Agreed Order with 
KDOW regarding NOVs in their collection 
system. 
- SSOs are due to excessive Inflow and 
Infiltration (I/I). 
 
Project goals to reduce I/I include: 
- Rehab/repair/replacement of approximately 
32,731 LF of gravity sewer. 
- CCTV inspection of 30,054 LF of gravity sewer. 
- Rehab/replacement of 119 manholes. 
- Rehab work based on SSES investigations. 
- Reduced I/I will lower energy consumption and 
costs at pump stations and the treatment plant. 

$6,287,320 $6,287,320 957 78 20 

Pendleton SX21191018 Butler, KY - 
Wastewater 
Collection and 

City of Butler - Project Overview:   
  - The City of Butler will address wastewater 
compliance issues due to I&I and aging 

$1,736,700 $1,736,700 322 78 20 



  7 

Wastewater Call for SRF Project List (Clean Water Act) 

County 
Project 
Number 
(WRIS) 

Project Name Entity Description 
Estimated 

Cost 
Requested 

Cost Households House Senate 

Treatment 
Improvements  

infrastructure, following violations and an agreed 
order with DOW. 
 
- Collection System Improvements:   
  - Assess existing collection system to identify 
repair areas. 
  - Use cameras for assessment; clean and 
repair sewer lines as needed. 
  - Majority of repairs will use cured in place pipe 
lining (CIPP). 
  - Additional work includes lateral repairs, 
removal of stormwater connections, and 
manhole improvements. 
 
- Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) 
Improvements:   
  - Identify necessary repairs at the existing 
plant, including: 
    - New chemical feed building and equipment. 
    - Cleaning of treatment units. 
    - Structural repairs and painting of tanks and 
piping. 
    - Electrical improvements and new access 
drive for chemical delivery. 

Kenton SX21117022 Licking River 
Tunnel 
Solution 

Sanitation 
District #1 of 
Northern 
Kentucky 

- Improve combined sewer overflow (CSO) 
management 
- Tunnel Details: 
  - Diameter: 12 ft 
  - Length: 11,300 LF 
  - Route: 4th Street, Newport to James Avenue, 
Covington 
- Infrastructure:  

$215,974,078 $20,000,000 21,775 64 
65 
67 

23 
24 



  8 

Wastewater Call for SRF Project List (Clean Water Act) 

County 
Project 
Number 
(WRIS) 

Project Name Entity Description 
Estimated 

Cost 
Requested 

Cost Households House Senate 

  - Five drop shafts 
  - Single 10 MGD dewatering pump station at 
Randolf Park Urban Orchard 

Grant SX21081003 Wastewater 
Treatment 
Plant Upgrade 

Grant 
County 
Sanitary 
Sewer 
District 

- Construct a 450,000 GPD sequencing batch 
reactor (SBR) for biological treatment. 
- Convert one package treatment basin into pre 
and post equalization basins. 
- Convert another basin into a 60,000-gallon 
aerobic digester. 
- Install pumping systems for equalization 
basins. 
- Upgrade electrical and instrumentation 
systems with standby power. 
- Reuse two package treatment basins; 
demolish two. 
- Build a solids dewatering system. 
- Add new chlorine contact and post aeration 
basins. 
- Include a new screening system. 
- Upgrade existing KY 491 Pump Station. 
- Complete a Facility Plan for the project. 

$9,111,520 $8,807,520 1,525 61 17 

Gallatin SX21077009 Gallatin County 
Industrial Park 
& Airport 
Sanitary Sewer 

Carrollton 
Utilities 

- Project: Sanitary sewer design and 
construction for an industrial park and regional 
airport   
- Location: 3,500 ft south of Exit 55 of I-71   
- Capacity: 50,000 gallons per day   
- Components:   
  - 3,200 ft gravity sewer   
  - 8 precast manholes   
  - 1 lift station   
  - 600 ft force main sewer   

$852,950 $852,950 3,733 61 20 

    Total $242,877,568 $46,599,490    



  

 

 
KY WWATERS Projects 

Project Number Project Name System Name 
SX21191017 Inflow and Infiltration 

Project 
City of Falmouth 

SX21191018 Butler, KY -Wastewater 
Collection and Treatment 
Improvements 

City of Butler 

 
 



 
 

Serving the communities in Boone, Campbell, Carroll, Gallatin, Grant, Kenton, Owen and Pendleton Counties 

Tara Johnson-Noem, Executive Director 
Judge/Executive Gary Moore, Board Chair 

22 Spiral Drive 
Florence, Kentucky 41042 

859.283.1885  

 
Executive Director’s Report  
Joint Funding Administration (JFA) 
Kentucky Department of Local Government 
 

Overview 
 

The Joint Funding Administration (JFA) was created to unify funding for the Area Development 

Districts (ADDs) from multiple sources (both state and federal). It originally included federal 

agencies such as the Economic Development Administration (EDA), the Community 

Development Block Grant (CDBG), and the Appalachian Regional Commission (ARC), as well 

as state agencies including the Department for Local Government (DLG), the Cabinet for Health 

and Family Services, and the Justice Cabinet. As the years passed, various agencies dropped 

out of JFA. Current participants include DLG, EDA, and CDBG. 

 

The Kentucky General Assembly allocates a set amount of money from the General Fund every 

biennium to the JFA, to be distributed by DLG. Similarly, from a federal perspective, the 

participating agencies allocate a set amount of money each year from their general funds to 

Kentucky, which DLG distributes via the JFA. Historically, DLG applies for this money from all 

federal agencies in the spring. Upon approval of the federal grants, DLG submits quarterly 

disbursement requests and distributes the funds to the ADDs each quarter. 

 

DLG works with federal agencies to minimize the reporting requirements for the ADDs, 

supplying most of the requirements for the ADDs' quarterly financial and process reports. Only 

the Comprehensive Economic Development Strategies (CEDS) are sent directly from the ADDs 

to the federal agency (EDA). Working with the ADDs, DLG will develop standardized MOAs 

each year, with attached Scope of Work (SOW) defining the services to be performed by each 

ADD and the amount to be paid by DLG. 

 

 
 
 



2 
 

Northern Kentucky Area Development District      22 Spiral Drive Florence, KY 41042      859.283.1885      nkadd.org 

Funding 
 

The 2024-2026 Executive Branch biennium budget (24RS HB 6) provides an appropriation to 

the Department for Local Government that includes an allocation of $3,984,000 for the JFA 

program in both Fiscal Years 2024-2025 and 2025-2026. 

 

FY 2024-2025 JFA Funds will be distributed per statute (KRS 147A.100) as follows: 

• Seventy percent (70%) is distributed equally among the ADDs. 

• Twenty percent (20%) is distributed based on population, using the most recent Census 

data. 

• Ten percent (10%) is distributed based on the number of jurisdictions in each ADD, as 

reported by the Kentucky Secretary of State’s Land Office at the time of the allocation. 

 

Funding Source Federal State TOTAL 
U.S. Department of Commerce 

Economic Development 

Administration 

Partnership Planning Grant 

CFDA 11.302 

Work Element 120 

$92,847.00 $24,045.00 $116,892.00 

U.S. Department of Housing 

and Urban Development 

Community Development Block 

Grant 

CFDA 14.228 

Work Element 125 

$15,829.00 $15,829.00 $31,658.00 

Commonwealth of Kentucky 

Department for Local Government 

State General Fund Allocation 

Work Element 140/150 

$0.00  $273,737.19  $273,737.19 

 

TOTAL  $108,676.00  $313,611.19 $422,287.19 

 



3 
 

Northern Kentucky Area Development District      22 Spiral Drive Florence, KY 41042      859.283.1885      nkadd.org 

FY 2025 Quarterly Project Summary 

 



4 
 

Northern Kentucky Area Development District      22 Spiral Drive Florence, KY 41042      859.283.1885      nkadd.org 

FY 2025 Funding Summary 

 

FY 2025 Activity Summary 

 



JFA FY2025 Projects and Activities 
by Scope

TcchnicaJ 
Assistance 

Planning/Stakeholder 
Meeting 

Loe.ii 
Government 
Meeting 
Projcct/Progfess 
Meeting 

Committee/Council
Meeting 

Public 
Meeting 

Staff 

Training

Project 
Adminisuation

Boa,d 

Meeting 

Closeout 

Project 
Management 

Project 
Development 

Regional 
Cooperation 

Application 
Preparation 

Training
Facilitation 

1111 19 

DIJIIIID 16 

l]l]l]l]I] 14 

--DIJIJIJD 11 

.... aaa9 

IJDIJIJ 5

1111 

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 

------

n 46 

38

n 36

35 40 45 

---------- 79 

........ a69 

.. IIIIIJllll61 

1111 54 

50 55 60 65 70 75 80 

Count 

85 90 

e Boone • Campbell e Carroll e Gallatin e Grant e Kenton • Owen e Pendleton e Regional 

95 105 110 115 120 125 130 135 



JFA FY2025 Projects and Activities 
by County

e Regional: 47.3%

 

e Kenton: 14.7% 

e Pendleton: 7.9% 

e Gallatin: 5.7% 

e Campbell: 9.6% 

e Grant: 4.5% 

e Owen: 3.8% 

e Boone: 2.9% 

e Carroll: 3.8% 


	00. 2025-12-18 NKADD Board Meeting Agenda.pdf
	01 2025-10-23 NKADD Board Meeting Minutes.pdf
	II. Pledge of Allegiance – Chair Gary Moore led the Pledge.

	02A. September Finance Report.pdf
	02B. October Finance Report.pdf
	03. BramelAckleyInvoice.pdf
	04. GOBond Invoice.pdf
	06. NKADD HDM Data Points.pdf
	07. 2025.12.18 eClearinghouse Board.pdf
	2025.12.18 eClearinghouse Board.pdf
	KY202510130881 View Project.pdf
	KY202510130881 View Project.pdf

	KY202510310973 Project Review.pdf
	KY202510310973.pdf

	KY202511120985 Project View.pdf
	KY202511120985 Project View.pdf

	KY202511201015 Project View.pdf
	KY202511201015 Project View.pdf


	08 NKY WMC Update.pdf
	4. Who Does What Updated Version.pdf
	1. Water and Wastewater Map.pdf
	910. SRF Timeline.pdf
	2a. 2027 PointsSpreadsheet-Water.pdf
	2b. 2027 PointsSpreadsheet-Wastewater.pdf
	5. SRF Project List.pdf
	9. KY WWATERS Projects.pdf

	09A. FY 2025 JFA Report.pdf
	09B. FY2025 JFA Projects and Activities by Scope.pdf
	09C. JFA FY2025_Counties.pdf



